
 

NOTE:  The Council will take a 5-minute recess at 8:00 pm. 
 

                       HAMPDEN TOWN COUNCIL    

                 HAMPDEN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

                                     AGENDA  
 
 

 

MONDAY                OCT 15th,   2018                                          7:00 P.M. 

   
 

 
A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

  
B. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. SIGNATURES 
 

2. SECRETARY’S REPORTS 
 

a. None 
 

3. COMMUNICATIONS  
 

a. Proposed 2019 State Valuation 
                         
                    

4. REPORTS 
 

a. Finance Committee Minutes – Sept 17th, 2018 
b. Infrastructure Committee Minutes –  None 
c. Planning & Development Committee Minutes –  Sept 5th, 2018 
d. Services Committee Minutes – Sept 10th, 2018 

 
C. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
D. POLICY AGENDA  
 

1. NEWS, PRESENTATIONS & AWARDS    
 
 

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 

a. Proposed amendments to the Fees Ordinance – referred by Council on 
October 1st 

 
b. Proposed repeal of the Outdoor Wood Boiler Annual Licensing 

Ordinance – referred by Council on October 1st 

 



MONDAY                              OCT 15th,  2018                                             7:00 P.M. 

 

2 

c. Proposed amendments to the Town Ways Ordinance – referred by 
Council on October 1st 
 

 
3. NOMINATIONS – APPOINTMENTS – ELECTIONS 

 
  

4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 

       
5. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 

a. Council referral to public hearing the proposed amendments to the Board 

of Appeals Ordinance – referral from Planning & Development 

Committee 

 

b. Council referral to public hearing the proposed amendments to the 

General Assistance Ordinance – as prepared by MMA for the Office of 

Family Independence, State of Maine 

 

c. Request for authorization for the expenditure of $7,784 from Police 

Cruiser Reserve for the purpose of outfitting the new cruiser with 

equipment – referral from Finance & Administration 

 

d. Liquor License renewal for Pizza Gourmet – requested by Brian Carlisle, 

Pizza Gourmet  

 

e. Request for authorization for the expenditure of $34,000 from Recreation 

Area Reserve for the purpose of awarding a contract to Plymouth 

Engineering to perform professional services to secure stormwater 

permitting for the Western Avenue Municipal Properties – referral from 

Finance & Administration 

 

      

E. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

 
F. MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 

G. COUNCILORS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
H. ADJOURNMENT  









Item B. 4. a Town of Hampden 

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday September 17th, 2018 

6:00 P.M. 

HAMPDEN TOWN OFFICE 

MINUTES 

Town Manager Chandler 
Town Clerk Paula Scott 

Attending: 

Chairman McAvoy 
Mayor McPike 
Councilor Cormier 
Councilor Marble 
Councilor Ryder 
Councilor Wilde - arrived at 6:10 p.m. * 

Absent: 

Councilor Wright 

Chairman McAvoy called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

1. Meeting Minutes

a. Sept. 4th, 2018 – Councilor Marble made a motion, seconded by

Councilor Ryder to approve the 9/4 minutes. Unanimous, 5-0.

2. Review & Sign Warrants – Committee members reviewed and signed the

disbursement warrants.

3. Unfinished Business

a. Council rules review – standing item – Committee proposed starting at

beginning of the Council Rules rather than Article 7. Members worked on the 

rules until the conclusion of the meeting.  

i. Adoption of proposed restructured Council Rules

ii. Article 7- Council Committees

4. New Business



a. Update on the status of the FEMA disaster reimbursement claim –

No action

5. Manager’s Items – Discussed municipal building needs with committee. No

action items.

6. Public Comment - None

7. Committee Member Comments - None

8. Adjournment – Chairman McAvoy adjourned the meeting at 6:55 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted, 

Paula A. Scott, CCM 
Town Clerk 

* corrected 10/15/2018



Item B. 4. c 

- 

Attending: 

Chairman Ryder called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

1. Minutes for the August 1, 2018 meeting – Motion to approve as submitted made by Councilor

McAvoy; second by Councilor Marble; carried 5/0/0.

2. Committee Applications: None

3. Citizen’s Initiatives: None

4. New Business: None

5. Old Business: None

6. Zoning Considerations/Discussions:

a. Discussion of potential zoning amendment to allow Place of Assembly in the Rural district.

Planner Cullen introduced the concept which is to allow venues for weddings, family

reunions, meetings, etc. She reviewed her memo and the issues that have arisen in other

communities where these uses have been established, primarily traffic and noise. Other

issues include buffering (visual), dust control (from dirt driveways and parking areas),

sewage disposal, and operational issues such as the number of events per year, the

duration of events, and the number of attendees. The main points of the discussion were:

• there are different levels of such event centers, some are full time businesses while

others are only offered a few times a year

• Farrah Perry offered that she is interested in doing this at her property on Shaw

Hill Road but only on a limited basis, with just a few events per year

• there are a variety of ways to allow and regulate these uses

• the committee wants to pursue such event centers as an allowable use in the

zoning ordinance, and keep the regulations simple yet provide appropriate

criteria and the means for the Planning Board to set site-specific conditions for

projects they approve

• Planner Cullen will work on this with the Planning Board.

Committee/Council Staff 
David Ryder - Chair Karen Cullen, Town Planner 
Dennis Marble Myles Block, Code Enforcement Officer 
Ivan McPike Jim Chandler, Town Manager 
Terry McAvoy 
Mark Cormier Public 

Farrah Perry 

Town of Hampden 

Planning and Development Committee 

Wednesday September 5, 2018, 6:00 pm 

Municipal Building Council Chambers 

Minutes



Planning & Development Committee 
Minutes of 9/5/2018 Meeting 

Page 2 of 2 

7. Updates:

a. MRC/Fiberight: CEO Block reported that construction is continuing. Town Manager

Chandler reported he has been trying to get a response (so far unsuccessfully) from

Fiberight regarding the need to deal with the temporary occupancy permit issue as it

relates to the use of the facility and compliance with the Planning Board approval and

zoning ordinance. CEO Block reported he still has not received plans for energy code

compliance or fire suppression. He added the project is being done by many different

parties, apparently with little if any oversight by any one entity, which has led to the

situation we’re dealing with on a daily basis now.

b. Staff Report:

i. Planner Cullen reported that the packet included an updated project list which

includes two new applications, one for a minor subdivision and the other is another

“insubstantial” modification requested by MRC/Fiberight for more modifications to

the approved site plan. Both of these will be in front of the Planning Board next

week, September 12.

ii. CEO Block reported that there has been quite a few new homes permitted this

year, four in August and about a dozen are under construction in several areas of

town.

iii. CEO Block said he was working on draft regulations for property maintenance

and would have them ready for the October P&D meeting. There was discussion

whether the Council had requested this; CEO Block was certain he had heard that

directive at a meeting but no one present could confirm one way or the other.

Councilor Marble stated he would be in favor of reviewing something. Councilor

McAvoy said he would never vote in favor of a property maintenance ordinance.

iv. CEO Block reported there is a Board of Appeals meeting scheduled for

September 26 for a variance request.

v. Planner Cullen reported the Shoreland Zoning Ordinance draft is moving forward

and she is now ready to meet with the state to address a number of questions on

the regulations. Once that’s done we can move ahead with creating a new map

that will match the state mandated (not the optional) shoreland zones.

8. Public Comments: None

9. Committee Member Comments: Councilor McAvoy asked about the flags/banners; Manager

Chandler said we have recently purchased new flags and have received permission from Emera to

install them on the telephone poles; that will be done when DPW can get to it.

10. Adjournment: Motion to adjourn the meeting at 6:56 pm made by Mayor McPike, seconded by

Councilor Marble; motion carried 5/0/0.

Respectfully submitted by 

Karen Cullen, Town Planner 



Item B. 4. d Town of Hampden 
 

SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Monday, September 10, 2018 
6:00 pm 

HAMPDEN TOWN OFFICE 
 

  MINUTES 
 
 
 Attending: 
 Chairman Marble    Town Manager Jim Chandler 
 Councilor McAvoy    Eric Jarvi 
 Councilor Ryder    Chris Packard 
 Mayor McPike     
 Councilor Wilde     
 Councilor Wright       
 Councilor Cormier       
 

1. Minutes  
 

a. August 13, 2018 – Mayor McPike made a motion, seconded by Councilor 
McAvoy to accept. Unanimous vote in favor, 6-0.  

 
2. Committee Applications & Citizen Initiatives – None 

 
 

3. Unfinished Business 
 

a. Marina – Harbor Master Ordinance Changes  
Chairman Marble introduced the item stating that the only question had been 
from Councilor McAvoy on the Harbor Master’s authority. Town Manager Jim 
Chandler stated he had heard back from the Attorney at Maine Municipal this 
afternoon that resulted in one additional edit/change that was made on page 2.   
Councilor Wright made a motion to refer to Town Council for Public Hearing, this 
was seconded by Councilor McAvoy.  The vote was unanimous.  
 

4. New Business 
a. Casella’s Notification of New Costs for Hauling Town Recycling – Requested by 

staff and Chairman Marble 
Councilors held discussion on this item.   
Nothing was decided. 
 



 

5. Manager and Staff Comments 
a. Youth Recreational Field Parking & Stormwater Permitting 

Town Manager Chandler put out an RFQ.  He also had a list of all attendees 
interested in the proposal. 
  

b. Souadabscook Stream Boat Launch at Vafiades Landing 
Chris Packard spoke about the Land Mark Heritage Trust as a possible funding 
source if the Town would agree to be the owner if the funds were raised to 
purchase the Landing.  The Town could provide the maintenance of the Landing.  
The Committee suggested the Town Manager and Chris may want to sit down 
and have a discussion on what responsibilities the Town would play in the 
ownership and maintenance of the Landing if it were purchased by the Land 
Trust.  
 

c. Transit Study & Bus Budget changes 
Town Manager Chandler stated the colored chart is of the monthly numbers of 
ridership over the last 6 fiscal years.   It shows a decline in ridership over the last 
3 years.   Councilor Ryder explained that it does not depict the actual riders 
from Hampden.  The Hampden route starts in Bangor, both Bangor and 
Hampden riders are counted in those numbers. The Town is interested in more 
and better information on ridership for Hampden.  
 

d. BACTS Pedestrian – Bicycle Planning Study 
Town Manager reported BACTS is in the process of putting together a study and 
map.  

 
6. Public Comments 

Eric Jarvi comment on walking 1A and the difficulties.   
 

7. Committee Member Comments 
 

8. Adjourn 
 
With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
 

Respectfully submitted,  
 Rosemary Bezanson, Administrative Assistant 





















































Item D. 2. c 
  
 
   

  MEMORANDUM 
   
 

 

 106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 

Office: 207-862-3034 
Facsimile: 207-862-5067 

 

 

 

 

 
 

TO:  Town Council 

FROM:  Jim Chandler, Town Manager JNC 

COPY:  Sean Currier, Public Works Director 

DATE:  October 1, 2018 

RE:  Proposed Vehicle Weight Restrictions Amendment to Town Ways Ordinance 

 

 

Please find attached proposed language to amend the Town Ways Ordinance to add an Article 
addressing vehicle weight restrictions on town way bridges and culverts.   
 

Background  
 
The Maine Department of Transportation (MDOT) routinely inspects three locally-maintained bridges 

and identified deficiencies or preventative maintenance issues with two bridges within the Town.  

Specifically, the Manning Mill Bridge and Sawyer Road Culvert were assessed and are the subject of 

comprehensive reports provided to the Town in November 2017.  This issue was discussed at Council 

meetings in July and August and as result of a public hearing held August 20th the Town has placed 

before voters in November a referendum question to fund the approximately $450,000 estimated to 

complete repairs on these two bridges.   

Recommendation of Proposed Ordinance Amendment 

Staff recommends Council schedule the required public hearing for the purpose of adopting the 

proposed amended Town Ways Ordinance, which will include vehicle weight restrictions on designated 

town way bridges and culvert crossings.  This amendment language has been prepared with the 

following items: 

• MMA Sample Ordinance language provided by their Legal Services team 

• Discussions with Maine DOT staff (previous and ongoing) 

• Research of applicable MRSA Statutes (attached for your reference) specifically: 
o Title 29-A §2387. BRIDGE LOADS  
o Title 23 §5637. BRIDGE LOADS – INSPECTION, POSTING AND CLOSURE 

• Manual for Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), Section 6F.10 of the 2009 edition 
 

The proposed amendment language is required to address the necessary precautionary warnings, 

restrictions and postings of bridges on town ways, pursuant to requirements of the State of Maine as 

defined in the appropriate Statutes enumerated in the ordinance language.   

 

 



Proposed Vehicle Weight Restrictions Amendment   October 1, 2018 

Council Memorandum  Page Two 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Legal Review 

Review of the attached draft proposed amendment has been forwarded to our Counsel at Rudman 

Winchell, and final language presented for Public Hearing will be subject to any edits suggested by their 

review.    

Fiscal Impacts  

The cost of implementing this amended ordinance has nominal fiscal impact, in the form of purchase 

and installation of signs for the crossings of the Manning Mill Bridge and Sawyer Road Culvert.   



TOWN OF HAMPDEN 

 

 

The Town of Hampden Hereby Ordains 

Proposed Amendment: “Article 4. Vehicle Weight Restrictions” to the Town Ways Ordinance 

 

Deletions are Strikethrough Additions Double Underlined 
 

 

Existing Ordinance Table of Contents below.  Complete text available online. 
 

 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN, MAINE 

TOWN WAYS ORDINANCE  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

ARTICLE I – GENERAL PAGE         3 

1.1.   Plan Required         3  

1.2.   Acceptance by Town Council       3 

1.3    Definitions…………………………………………………………………... 3 

1.3 4.   Town Engineer Defined        4 

1.4 5.   Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances or Resolves     4 

ARTICLE II – STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS      4 

2.1.   Connection With Existing Town Way       4   

2.2.   Intersections          5   

2.3.   Widths of Town Ways         5   

2.4.   Grades          5 

2.5.   Clearing of Stumps and Roots        5   

2.6.   Side Slopes          5   

2.7.   Subgrade          5 

2.8.   Gravel Base          5  

2.9.   Surface Treatment         5   

2.10.   Cul-de-sac (Dead-end Street)       5   

2.11.   Culverts          5   

2.12.   Opening Town Ways or Streets        6   

2.13.   Modified or Additional Standards       6   

ARTICLE III – LIMITATIONS OF TRUCK TRAFFIC  

3.1.   Limitation/Prohibition of Truck Traffic       6   

3.2.   Enforcement          6   

3.3.   Civil Penalties          6 

ARTICLE IV – VEHICLE WEIGHT RESTRICTIONS 

4.1.   Vehicle Weight Restrictions        6 

4.2.   Restrictions and Notices ………………………………………………….. 6 

4.3    Exemptions ………………………………………………………………… TBD 

4.4    Enforcement ………………………………………………………………   TBD 

4.5    Civil Penalties …………………………………………………………….. TBD 

  



TOWN OF HAMPDEN 

 

 

Proposed New Language is everything below: 

 

Added to Article I. 

1. 3. Definitions - Except as otherwise provided herein, the definitions contained in Title 29-A 

M.R.S.A. shall govern the construction of words contained in this Ordinance. Any words not 

defined therein shall be given their common and ordinary meaning.  

 

Added in its entirety as Article IV. 

4.1. Vehicle Weight Restrictions - Upon designation by the Town Manager and approval of the 

Town Council, vehicle weight limits and restrictions may be applied to bridges and culverts as 

may be located on town public ways, to prevent damage to town ways and bridges in the Town 

of Hampden.  Such restrictions may be applied to vehicles of excessive weight, to lessen safety 

hazards and the risk of injury to the traveling public, to extend the life expectancy of town ways 

and bridges, and to reduce the public expense of their maintenance and repair. The Town Ways 

Ordinance is amended and adopted pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3009; 29-A M.R.S.A. §§ 2395, 

2387-2388; and 23 M.R.S.A. § 563. 

 

4. 2. Restrictions and Notices - The Town Manager may, either permanently or seasonally, 

impose such restrictions on the gross registered weight of vehicles as may, in the Town’s 

judgment, be necessary to protect the traveling public and prevent abuse of the highways, and 

designate the town ways and bridges to which the restrictions shall apply. 

Whenever notice has been posted as provided herein, no person may thereafter operate any 

vehicle with a gross registered weight in excess of the restriction during any applicable time 

period on any way or bridge so posted unless otherwise exempt as provided herein. 

Pursuant to 29-A M.R.S.A. § 2395, the notice shall contain, at a minimum, the following 

information: the name of the way or bridge, the gross registered weight limit, the time period 

during which the restriction applies, the date on which the notice was posted. The notice shall be 

conspicuously posted at each end of the restricted portion of the way or bridge in a location 

clearly visible from the traveled way, unless on a dead-end way where only the entering side 

shall be posted. 

The Town may post specific vehicle weight restrictions on bridges or town ways as may be 

deemed necessary for temporary conditions of bridges, culverts and town ways.  Whenever a 

restriction expires or is lifted, the notices shall be removed wherever posted.  Whenever a 

restriction is revised or extended, existing notices shall be removed and replaced with new 

notices. No person may remove, obscure or otherwise tamper with any notice so posted except as 

provided herein.  

 

4. 3. Exemptions - The Town acknowledges the following exemptions, as defined by and from 

time to time may be changed, Maine Statute.  Additionally, the Town may deem it appropriate 



TOWN OF HAMPDEN 

 

 

upon petition by a citizen to review requests for a waiver for a specific vehicle or circumstance at 

a given location that otherwise is not directly addressed in the exemptions listed below. 

 

• The following vehicles are exempt under State law: Any vehicle delivering home heating 

fuel or organic animal bedding and operating in accordance with a permit issued by the 

MDOT under 29-A M.R.S.A. § 2395 (4) and, when necessary during a period of drought 

emergency declared by the governor, any vehicle transporting well-drilling equipment for 

the purpose of drilling a replacement well or for improving an existing well on property 

where that well is no longer supplying sufficient water for residential or agricultural 

purpose and operating in accordance with a permit issued by the MDOT under 29-A 

M.R.S.A. § 2395 (4-A).  

 

• Frozen road exemption: This ordinance shall not apply to any restricted road which is 

frozen.  The highway is considered “frozen” only when the air temperature is 32° F or 

below and no water is showing in the cracks of the road.  Both conditions must be met. 

 

• The following vehicles are also exempt under the specific provisions of this ordinance: 

 

1. Any vehicle or combination of vehicles registered for a gross weight of 23,000 

pounds or less. 

2. Any vehicle or combination of vehicles registered for a gross weight in excess of 

23,000 pounds and traveling without a load other than tools or equipment necessary 

for the proper operation of the vehicle. This exemption does not apply to special 

mobile equipment. It shall be a defense to a violation of this sub-4. if the combined 

weight of any vehicle or combination of vehicles registered for a gross weight in 

excess of 23,000 pounds and its load is in fact less than 23,000 pounds.  

3. MaineDOT vehicles or other vehicles authorized by MaineDOT; or maintenance 

vehicles operated by the Town of Hampden or other municipality or county to 

maintain the roads under their authority.  

4. Any vehicle authorized by the Town of Hampden deemed necessary for the service or 

maintenance of properties not otherwise accessible accept via passage over a 

particular bridge or culvert located on a town way. 

5. Authorized emergency vehicles as defined in 29-A M.R.S.A. § 2054, school buses, a 

wrecker towing a disabled vehicle of legal weight from a posted highway, and 

vehicles with three axles or fewer under the direction of a public utility and engaged 

in utility infrastructure maintenance or repair.  

6. Any two axle vehicles registered for a gross weight in excess of 23,000 pounds and 

less than or equal to 34,000 pounds that are carrying any of the Special Commodities 

may operate without a permit. Special Commodities includes any of the following: 

a. Home delivered heating fuel (oil, gas, coal, stove size wood that is fewer than 

36” in length, propane and wood pellets);  

b. Petroleum products;  

c. Groceries;  

d. Bulk milk; 

e. Bulk feed; 

f. Solid waste;  



TOWN OF HAMPDEN 

 

 

g. Organic animal bedding;  

h. Returnable beverage containers; 

i. Sewage from private septic tanks or porta-potties; or 

j. Medical gases. 

 

4. 4. Enforcement - This Ordinance shall be administered and may be enforced by the municipal 

officers or their duly authorized designee [such as town manager, road commissioner, code 

enforcement officer or law enforcement officer].  

 

4. 5. Civil Penalties - Any violation of this Ordinance shall be a civil infraction subject to a fine 

of not less than $250.00 nor more than $1000.00. Each violation shall be deemed a separate 

offense. In addition to any fine, the municipality may seek restitution for the cost of repairs to 

any damaged way or bridge and reasonable attorney fees and costs. Prosecution shall be in the 

name of the Town of Hampden and shall be brought in the Maine District Court.  

 

 



 

Generated 
11.3.2017    |  1 

Maine Revised Statutes 

Title 23: TRANSPORTATION 

Chapter 9: BRIDGES 

§563. INSPECTION, POSTING AND CLOSURE 

 

The department shall inspect all structures on public ways. [2017, c. 154, §1 (AMD).] 

1. Municipal-maintained structures.  For a structure for which a municipality has maintenance 

responsibility, the department shall advise the municipality of its inspection findings, noted deficiencies and 

recommendations regarding posting or closure. The municipality has sole responsibility and authority to 

determine whether a structure must be posted or closed, except that the department may close the structure in 

cases of emergency or when the department reasonably determines closure is necessary to protect the 

traveling public from imminent hazard. If the department becomes aware of deficiencies in a structure that 

could impact posting or closure decisions, the department shall promptly notify the municipality. The 

municipality is responsible for all costs and expenses related to the posting and closure, including any needed 

notifications, procedures, signing and barricades. 

[ 2001, c. 314, §2 (NEW);  2001, c. 314, §4 (AFF) .] 

2. Department-maintained structures.  For a structure for which the department has maintenance 

responsibility, the department has sole responsibility and authority to determine whether the structure must be 

posted or closed, except that a municipality may close the structure in cases of emergency. If the municipality 

becomes aware of deficiencies in a structure that could impact posting or closure decisions, the municipality 

shall promptly notify the department. The department is responsible for all costs and expenses related to the 

posting and closure, including any needed notifications, procedures, signing and barricades. 

[ 2001, c. 314, §2 (NEW);  2001, c. 314, §4 (AFF) .] 

SECTION HISTORY 
2001, c. 314, §2 (NEW).  2001, c. 314, §4 (AFF).  2001, c. 667, §§C20,22 

(AFF).  2017, c. 154, §1 (AMD). 

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish this material, we require that you 

include the following disclaimer in your publication: 

All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this publication 

reflects changes made through the First Special Session of the 128th Maine Legislature and is current through November 

1, 2017. The text is subject to change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially certified by the Secretary of 

State. Refer to the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated and supplements for certified text. 

The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory publication you may produce. 

Our goal is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication 

and to preserve the State's copyright rights. 

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law 

to the public. If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney. 



 

Generated 
11.3.2017    |  1 

Maine Revised Statutes 

Title 29-A: MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC 

Chapter 21: WEIGHT, DIMENSION AND PROTECTION OF WAYS 

§2387. BRIDGE LOADS 

 

1. Local authority to limit weight, number or speed.  Officials responsible for the repair and 

maintenance of a bridge may limit the combined weight of vehicle and load or any axle, or the number or 

speed of vehicles permitted on a bridge to the limit necessary for the safety of life or property or the 

maintenance of the bridge. 

[ 1993, c. 683, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1993, c. 683, Pt. B, §5 (AFF) .] 

2. Department of Transportation responsibility.  If an official fails to set limits, the Department of 

Transportation may set limits. 

[ 1993, c. 683, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1993, c. 683, Pt. B, §5 (AFF) .] 

3. Posting.  Regulations are in effect when notice is conspicuously posted at each end of a bridge. 

[ 1993, c. 683, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1993, c. 683, Pt. B, §5 (AFF) .] 

4. Advice.  Limits must be based on the advice of the Department of Transportation or a registered 

professional civil engineer retained for the purpose of inspecting and determining the safe capacity of bridges. 

In an emergency, the officials may set limits as they may determine proper for the structural capacity or the 

maintenance of the bridge. 

As soon as is reasonably possible, the officials shall seek the advice of the Department of Transportation. 

[ 1993, c. 683, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1993, c. 683, Pt. B, §5 (AFF) .] 

5. Penalty.  Violation of a posted bridge weight limit is a traffic violation, for which a forfeiture of $20 

per each full 1,000 pounds plus $30 per each full 10% over the posted limit may be adjudged. 

It is not a violation if the excess weight is less than 500 pounds multiplied by the number of axles less one. 

If the violation is for excess weight less than 1,000 pounds multiplied by the number of axles less one, the 

fine is reduced by 50%. 

[ 1993, c. 683, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1993, c. 683, Pt. B, §5 (AFF) .] 

SECTION HISTORY 
1993, c. 683, §A2 (NEW).  1993, c. 683, §B5 (AFF). 

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish this material, we require that you 

include the following disclaimer in your publication: 

All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this publication 

reflects changes made through the First Special Session of the 128th Maine Legislature and is current through November 

1, 2017. The text is subject to change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially certified by the Secretary of 

State. Refer to the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated and supplements for certified text. 

The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory publication you may 

produce. Our goal is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who is publishing what, to identify any 

needless duplication and to preserve the State's copyright rights. 



MRS Title 29-A §2387. BRIDGE LOADS 

  |  2  
Generated 
11.3.2017 

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law 

to the public. If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney. 















































 

Item D. 5. c 

     TO:  Jim Chandler, Town Manager 

FROM: Joe Rogers, Director of Public Safety 

      RE: Police Cruiser Reserve Fund 

DATE: October 11, 2018 

 

I am requesting that $7783.99 be released from the police cruiser reserve fund account for the cost of 

outfitting the 2018 Ford Interceptor Police SUV. 

 

 

 

  



---------- Forwarded message --------- 
From: Jeffery Coon <custominstallationsmaine@gmail.com> 
Date: Wed, Sep 26, 2018 at 8:16 PM 
Subject: Estimate 268 from Custom Installations, LLC 
To: <swebber@hampdenmaine.gov> 
 
 
 
Dear Scott: 
 
Please review the attached estimate for suggested equipment for the new  
vehicle. Let me know if I've missed something and feel free to contact  
us if you have any questions. 
 
I would suggest that you order from WatchGuard a 3way visor post bracket  
for the Ford Interceptor Utility to mount the display, wireless mic  
charger and the camera head.  I didn't put it on the equipment quote,  
but for removal of equipment from the current vehicle, installation of  
all equipment into the new vehicle and installation of a prisoner  
partition into your current vehicle is would be $1,900.00. 
 
We look forward to working with you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
-Jeff 
Custom Installations, LLC 
2079445920 
 
--  
Jeffery S Coon 
Custom Installations, LLC 
5 Thibodeau Drive 
Levant, ME  04456 
(207) 944-5920 
custominstallationsmaine@gmail.com 

 

mailto:custominstallationsmaine@gmail.com
mailto:swebber@hampdenmaine.gov
mailto:custominstallationsmaine@gmail.com


Estimate
Date

9/22/2018

Estimate #

268

Name / Address

Hampden Police Department
106 Western Avenue
Hampden, ME  04444
Attn: Sgt. Scott Webber

Custom Installations, LLC

5 Thibodeau Drive
Levant, ME  04456
(207) 944-5920
custominstallationsmaine@gmail.com

Project

We appreciate your inquiry!

Customer Signature _____________________________________

Total

Description Qty Cost Total

Whelen IW34UFX Inner Edge  Suggested $1,768.00 1 895.00 895.00
Whelen IONBKT4 brackets for rear lights 1 25.50 25.50
Whelen I2E blue/white ION (1) for rear (2) for side windows
Suggested $173/ea

3 118.75 356.25

Whelen I2D red/white for rear  Suggested $173/ea 1 118.75 118.75
Whelen TLIE blue/white liftgate Suggested $135/ea 1 99.95 99.95
Whelen TLID red/white liftgate  Suggested $135/ea 1 99.95 99.95
Whelen Used Sapphire light/siren amp w/CCRN36 controller New
unit $1,396.00

1 350.00 350.00

Whelen speaker and bracket 1 175.00 175.00
Whelen SSFPOS taillight flasher Suggested $80.00 1 68.95 68.95
Whelen VTX609C White LED for Taillights  Suggested $119/ea 2 89.95 179.90
Whelen PAR46S2B blue/white spotlight  Suggested $343.00 1 259.95 259.95
Whelen LINSV2E blue/white mirror  Suggested $245/ea 2 183.75 367.50
Whelen LINSV mount LSVBKT34 2 24.50 49.00
Whelen 49.00 49.00
Federal SL4F2B2W rear window stick 1 239.45 239.45
Federal CNSM-RBK1 bracket kit 1 24.95 24.95
Federal 34.00 34.00
Setina 12-VS-13-PIU Cargo Partition 1 389.25 389.25
Setina 10-VSL-XL-13-PIU Prisoner Partition 1 789.45 789.45
Setina Shipping 165.00 165.00
Gamber Johnson 7170-0166-08 equipment console w/armrest and
cupholder

1 399.95 399.95

Gamber Johnson 15082 switch plate 1 24.95 24.95
Gamber Johnson 16648 pass thru cable 1 49.45 49.45
Gamber Johnson 15371 USB power 1 64.89 64.89
Gamber Johnson 7160-0444 wire cover plate 1 29.95 29.95
Gamber Johnson 7160-0063 cigarette lighter plug 1 23.62 23.62
Gamber Johnson 7160-0924 2" pocket 1 39.59 39.59

Page 1



Estimate
Date

9/22/2018

Estimate #

268

Name / Address

Hampden Police Department
106 Western Avenue
Hampden, ME  04444
Attn: Sgt. Scott Webber

Custom Installations, LLC

5 Thibodeau Drive
Levant, ME  04456
(207) 944-5920
custominstallationsmaine@gmail.com

Project

We appreciate your inquiry!

Customer Signature _____________________________________

Total

Description Qty Cost Total

Magnetic Mic Clip 2 39.62 79.24
Gamber Shipping 45.00 45.00
Sti-Co FLexiwhip antenna w/low loss cable 1 69.95 69.95
Sound Off ECVDMLT5T4 Cargo work light 2 49.94 99.88
AC/DC MZL90 shutdown timer 1 139.95 139.95
Shop Supplies 1 80.00 80.00
Parts Sales Tax 5.50% 0.00

Page 2

$5,883.22



























 
 
   

  MEMORANDUM 
   
 

 

 
106 Western Avenue 

Hampden, Maine 04444 
Office: 207-862-3034 

Facsimile: 207-862-5067 

 

 

 

 

Item D. 5. e 

 
TO:  Town Council  

FROM:  Jim Chandler, Town Manager 

COPY:  Shelley Abbott, Recreation Director 

Sean Currier, Public Works Director 

DATE:  October 15, 2018 

RE: Selection of Consultant for Western Ave Stormwater Permitting & Authorization to 

Award Professional Services Contract to Plymouth Engineering 

 

 

This memorandum conveys the attached Plymouth Engineering contract for professional services, 
including the scope of work outline and insurance certificates.   

Background 

In August 2018 the Town advertised a Request of Qualifications for proposals to conduct professional 

engineering, design and permitting services on behalf of the Town.  These services are necessary to 

successfully acquire the Maine Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) Site Location of 

Development Application (SLODA) permit(s) to design the required stormwater facilities on the Western 

Avenue municipal properties; and to design the proposed additional parking area desired for the athletic 

fields located behind the Lura Hoit Pool.  Upon completion of the review and evaluation process, staff 

recommended to the Services Committee that the Town select Plymouth Engineering.   

Staff Recommendation  

Staff recommends your consideration of the attached Plymouth Engineering contract for professional 
services to perform the work necessary to acquire the DEP SLODA permit(s) needed for developing 
stormwater management facilities for the Town properties on Western Avenue; and, to design the 
proposed additional parking area desired for the athletic fields located behind the Lura Hoit Pool.   

Staff negotiated a fee with Plymouth Engineering for these services in the amount of thirty-four 

thousand ($34,000) dollars – lump sum, not to exceed that amount.  The contract and scope were 

discussed and favorably referred (6-0) from the Services Committee to Finance and Administration for 

review, approval and referral to Council for award.  

Fiscal Impacts  

Award of the attached contract for professional services to Plymouth Engineering requires authorization 

of reserve funds in the amount of thirty-four thousand ($34,000) dollars from the Recreation Area 

Reserve Account #3-767-00.  The reserve fund balance previously encumbered and set aside for this 

project is $63,236.01. 



Page 1 of 5 

Plymouth Engineering, Inc. 
P.O. Box 46 –  30 Lower Detroit Road 
Plymouth, Maine 04969 
info@plymouthengineering.com    
tel: (207) 257-2071 fax: (207) 257-2130 

 

 Professional Services Agreement 
Date: October 15, 2018 

 

Client: Town of Hampden 

  106 Western Avenue 

  Hampden, ME  04444 

  

Project: Permitting Services for Western Avenue Municipal Properties 

Project Number: 18234 
 

Scope of Services: Services for the Project will be as outlined in the Statement of Qualifications 

submitted to the Client on September 24, 2018 (attached) and as clarified herein. Exclusions from 

our scope and fee include any additional boundary or topographic survey work, any acquisition or 

further requirements for wetland or vernal pool investigations or reporting from Moyse 

Environmental, cost related to digging of test pits, additional soils investigation work as may be 

required by the SLODA permit application, and legal or application fees. 

 

Fee for Services: Fees will be billed, based upon work completed during the billing period and our 

standard hourly rates plus reimbursable expenses for a fee not to exceed $34,000 for the scope 

provided.   

 
Invoices will be submitted monthly, and payment is expected within thirty (30) days. Outstanding 

invoices will be subject to 1 1/2 % interest per month, plus all reasonable collection and legal fees. 

 

Retainer Amount: None. 

Special Conditions: None. 

 

Standard Terms and Conditions of Agreement attached below form part of this 

Agreement 
 

Engineer:  Plymouth Engineering, Inc. Client:  Town of Hampden 

By: Scott E. Braley By:_Jim Chandler 

  

  
Signature Signature 
  

President Town Manager 
Title Title 
  

October 11, 2018 October 15, 2018 
Date Date 



Page 2 of 5 

 

 

Standard Terms and Conditions of Agreement 
 

 

The CLIENT shall provide access to the site for activities necessary for the performance of the services. 

The ENGINEER will take precautions to minimize damage due to these activities, but shall not be held 

liable for any such damage. 

 

 

Invoices for ENGINEER’s services shall be submitted, at the ENGINEER’s option, either monthly or at 

the completion of the project. Invoices shall be payable within 30 days after the invoice date. If the 

invoices are not paid within 30 days, the ENGINEER may, without waiving any claim or right against the 

CLIENT, and without liability whatsoever to the CLIENT, terminate the performance of the services. 

Retainers shall be credited on the final invoice. 

 

 

Accounts unpaid 60 days after the invoice date may be subject to a monthly service charge of 1.5% on the 

unpaid balance (18% true annual rate), at the sole discretion of the ENGINEER. In the event any portion 

of an account remains unpaid 90 days after billing, the CLIENT shall pay all costs of collection, including 

reasonable attorney's fees. 

 

 

The CLIENT shall indemnify and hold harmless the ENGINEER and all of its personnel and 

subcontractors from and against any and all claims, damages, losses and expenses arising out of or 

resulting from the performance of the services, provided that such claim, damage loss or expense is 

caused in whole or in part by the negligent act, omission, and/or strict liability of the CLIENT, anyone 

directly or indirectly employed by the CLIENT (except the ENGINEER), or anyone for whose acts any of 

them may be liable. 

 

 

In recognition of the relative risks, rewards and benefits of the project to both the CLIENT and the 

ENGINEER, the CLIENT agrees that to the fullest extent permitted by law, the ENGINEER’s total 

liability to the CLIENT for any and all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, damages or claim expenses 

arising out of this agreement from any cause or causes shall not exceed the fee for services. Such causes 

include, but are not limited to, the ENGINEER’s or the ENGINEER’s subcontractors, negligence, errors, 

omissions, strict liability, or breach of contract. 

 

 

This agreement may be terminated by either the CLIENT or the ENGINEER should the other fail to 

perform its obligation hereunder. In the event of termination, the CLIENT shall pay the ENGINEER for 

all services rendered to the date of termination, all reimbursable expenses, and all reasonable expenses of 

termination. 

 

 

All documents produced by the ENGINEER under this agreement shall remain the property of the 

ENGINEER and may not be used by the CLIENT for any other endeavor without written consent of the 

ENGINEER. 

 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Maine. 



Page 3 of 5 

Plymouth Engineering, Inc. 
P.O. Box 46 – 30 Lower Detroit Road 
Plymouth, Maine 04969 
info@plymouthengineering.com    

tel: (207) 257-2071  fax: (207) 257-2130 

 

 

 

 

2018 Rate Schedule 
 

 

 

 

STAFFING HOURLY RATE 

Principal-in-Charge $95.00 

Senior Project Manager $80.00 

Project Manager $75.00 

Senior Engineers (Civil, Environmental, Structural) $75.00 

Project Engineers (Civil, Environmental, Structural) $70.00 

Junior Engineers (Civil, Environmental, Structural) $65.00 

Registered Architect $80.00 

Architectural Intern $60.00 

Landscape Architect/Planner $75.00 

  

Drafting Production $55.00 

Construction Monitoring/Inspection/Administration $55.00 – 95.00 

Clerical $40.00 

  

Sub-Consultants Cost + 10% administrative fee 

Mileage Prevailing IRS Rate 

Miscellaneous Reimbursable Expenses At Cost 

  
 

 

The hourly rates and other costs described above are effective as of January 1, 2018. All contracted work 

that extends beyond a rate change will be invoiced at the rates applicable at the time this Contract was 

executed. 

 

All services on client’s behalf related to mediation, arbitration and/or trial regarding work unrelated to 

Plymouth Engineering design services, including but not limited to preparation, depositions, witness and 

expert witness, shall be billed at 175% of the standard hourly rates. 

 

 

  



Page 4 of 5 

Plymouth Engineering, Inc. 

 

Scope of Work Outline 
 

 

 

MDEP SLODA Permit Application Tasks: 

1. Client-Stakeholder Kickoff Meeting  

a. Discuss project background, purpose and goals 

b. Affirm data needs and seek stakeholder input 

2. Complete Data Acquisition   

a. Includes receipt from Town of previously completed work products 

b. Collection of additional documentation from other previous contractors 

3. Parking Lot Concept Design Refinement 

4. Regulatory Kickoff Meeting  

a. Establish baseline requirements to meet Department expectations 

5. Parking Lot Design & Permitting Level Plan Development 

a. Draft Civil Site Plan 

b. Construction Details 

c. Pre- & Post-Development Storm Water Plans, with Required Details per MDEP  

6. Perform stormwater calculations and modeling 

a. Design stormwater management systems and buffer requirements (permit level) 

7. Application Refinement 

a. Prepare and distribute letters garnering input from State agencies and local utility 

providers  

i. (Historic Preservation, Inland Fisheries, Hampden Water, Bangor Wastewater) 

8. MDEP Pre-Application Meeting 

a. Review preliminary stormwater management system design  

b. Town affirms Fiscal Capability for Project Development 

9. Permit Application Submission to MDEP 

10. Address Maine DOT permit components for Addition of Proposed Exit Lane 

11. Respond to MDEP feedback, if any 

 

Town of Hampden Planning Board – Site Plan Approval Tasks: 

 

1. Modify Site Plan prepared for MDEP SLODA Permit Application 

2. Compile plan summary and supporting documentation required by local ordinance 

3. Submit Site Plan application to the Town 

4. Attend Public Planning Board Meeting 

 



Page 5 of 5 

Deliverables 

 

1. Parking Lot Concept Design 
2. Permit-Level Plans, with Permit Application(s) 
3. SLODA Permit Application 
4. MDOT Permit Application(s) – As identified by Regulator 
5. Planning Board Site Plan Application 

 

Exclusions 

 

Scope is based upon certain assumptions that related tasks and work products have been accomplished by 

others, and the results of that work (including those products and deliverables) will be provided to 

Plymouth Engineering.  Should any additional work be required of the regulatory agencies for the 

issuance of their permits, those items specifically are excluded from this Scope of Work, and include: 

 

1. Additional Boundary or Topography Survey tasks; 
2. Additional acquisition or determination of data related to wetland or vernal pool identification 

or analysis, including additional work required of Moyse Environmental; 
3. Costs associated with the digging of soil analysis test pits (to be performed by Town staff); 
4. Additional soil testing and/or analysis; 
5. Legal and permit fees for applications to the regulatory agencies. 

 

Should any of the above be required for the successful application and issuance of the desired MDEP, 

MDOT, Army Corps, NRPA, EPA or Hampden Site Plan permits/approvals; that work would be 

considered a change in Scope, or otherwise be the fiscal responsibility of the Town. 

 

 

 

 



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

ZHENRY

Zachary G. Henry

10/11/2018

PLYMENG-02

A V10141171001
A V10141171001

11/20/2017 11/20/2018
11/20/2017 11/20/2018

For Professional Liability coverage, the aggregate limit is the total insurance available for all covered claims presented within the policy period.  The limit will 
be reduced by payments of indemnity and expense.

Clark Insurance
1945 Congress Street, Bldg A
PO Box 3543
Portland, ME 04104-3543

(207) 774-2994(207) 523-2272

Town of Hampden
106 Western Avenue
Hampden, ME 04444

Plymouth Engineering Inc
30 Lower Detroit Road
PO Box 46
Plymouth, ME 04969

Beazley Insurance Company Inc. 37540

zhenry@clarkinsurance.com

Each Claim
Aggregate

1,000,000
1,000,000

Prof Liability
Deductible - $7,500



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Shawna Lancaster

PLYMO-2 OP ID: SH

10/11/2018

Shawna Lancaster
Varney Agency-Bangor
32 Oak St
Bangor, ME 04401
Shawna Lancaster

207-947-8637 207-947-1243

LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE CO.
MAINE EMPLOYERS MUTUALPLYMOUTH ENGINEERING, INC.

P.O. BOX 46
PLYMOUTH, ME 04969

A 1,000,000

BZS55883997 12/30/2017 12/30/2018 1,000,000
X 15,000

2,000,000
2,000,000

1,000,000A
X BAS55883997 12/30/2017 12/30/2018

B
1810046609 05/16/2018 05/16/2019 500,000

500,000
500,000

BUILDING 327,644
PROPERTY 118,833

Town of Hampden
106 Western Ave.
Hampden, ME 04444

207-947-8637

23515
11149

Business Owners


	COUNCIL AGENDA - 10-15-2018
	ScannedItem-B3a--2018-10-15
	FINANCE & Admin Minutes  09-17-2018-ItemB4a
	9-5-2018 P&D minutes-Item-B4c
	SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING Minutes 2018-09-10-ItemB4d
	ScannedItems-D2a-D2b-2018-10-15
	TownWaysOrdinance-PubHrg-2018-10-15-ItemD2c
	Vehicle Weight Limits Memo to Council - 2018-10-15-PubHrg-ItemD2c
	Proposed Town Ways Ordinance Amendment - Vehicle Weight Restrictions
	title23sec563-BridgePosting-Closure
	title29-Asec2387-BridgeLoads

	ScannedItems-D5a-D5b-2018-10-15
	Cruiser Outfitting Reserve Fund Request-2018-10-15-ItemD5c
	Cruiser Outfitting Reserve Fund Request-2018-10-15ItemD5c
	CustomInstallations-2018PD-SUV
	092618 - Hampden PD - Est_268_from_Custom_Installations_LLC_1792

	ScannedItems-D5d-2018-10-15
	PlymouthEngineeringContractAwardPkg-2018-10-15-D5e
	Western Avenue Consultant Contract Award Memo 2018-10-15-D5e
	101118 Agreement w- Scope
	PEI COI Prof Liability
	PEI COI - Gen Liability




